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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August2019. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a governors’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The trust operates an academy for pupils aged 10 to 15 years of age serving a mixed residential area to the north
of Bedford. It has a pupil capacity of 750 and had a roll of 733 pupils in the October 2018 census.

Chair’s Introduction

Welcome to our annual report for the academic year 201 8/19 which reviews a busy year and one in which the
school completed the KS2 SATs tests for the last time. Governors were delighted with the results which are
articulated elsewhere in this report.

In 201 8-19 Goldington Academy continued in its conversion from being a Middle to a Secondary school with the
oldest pupils on site being Year 10. Governors would once again like to thank the staff for all their dedication
and commitment in getting the school ready for Secondary, the size of the task cannot be underestimated. The
improvement in facilities, the successful recruitment and retention of excellent teachers, the research and
planning of a varied curriculum, the successful retention of another group of our year eight students give us great
confidence in the school’s ability to deliver an excellent GCSE programme. As we complete our transition
Goldington Academy continues to provide a stimulating learning environment; the report describes a vibrant
school offering opportunities for all, both in and out of the classroom. We acknowledge the confidence parents
have placed in our ability to provide an excellent secondary education for their children.

Governors continue to be proactive providing high levels of support and challenge. Changes to committee
structures in order to manage demands on time proved effective and will continue to be monitored and reviewed
to ensure efficacy.

As well as the hard work and dedication of the school’s teaching and support staff Governors also appreciate the
level of parental support of both students and the school, which is clearly evident through their attendance at
events held in school, for example parents’ consultations, options evening, SATs information evening, etc. The
support you provide at home to help your children’s learning really does make a difference to their success.

We continue to be impressed by the wide variety of extra-curricular activities on offer within school with new ones
regularly being added to reflect the interests of our students. Governors recognise the time, energy and
enthusiasm given voluntarily by the staff that devote themselves to this work on top of very hectic teaching
timetables, and heartily thank them for it. The intangible benefits of these activities on students’ confidence and
self-esteem cannot be underestimated.

Governors are delighted to see work on the Priority Schools Building Programme finally underway. Whilst this
work will inevitably lead to some slight disruption we are very excited to see far in excess of £7 million being
spent on the fabric of the school. This should really set the Academy up for the 2020s and beyond.

We value all the hard work and dedication of our professional teams working both in and out of the classroom
and would like to take this opportunity to publicly express our thanks to Francis, our principal, and the whole
school team for their continued commitment and support.

Staff and governors remain committed to supporting the whole educational journey of our students and continually
look to engage with feeder schools! sixth form providers and career professionals to provide beneficial transitional
links and establish excellent outcomes for all of our students.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Finally, I wish to convey a personal thank you from me to all the Goldington Academy governors, who have given
of their time voluntarily showing such dedication and enthusiasm. Each governor brings their own individual skill
set and expertise which, combined, results in a professional body that provides effective modem governance.
The role of the governor is interesting, varied and rewarding: we are always interested in hearing from anyone
thinking about serving the school in such a valuable way.

We invite you to attend our AGM in the school library at 630pm on Thursday 13th February 2019.

Mrs Diane Field
Chair of Governors

Telephone :01234 261516

www.goldingtonacademY.OrgUk
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable companys Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the academy
trust.

The Governors of Goldington Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purpose of company law.

The charitable company is known as Goldington Academy.

Details of the Governors who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on page 1.

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees indemnities

The academy is covered under the academies Risk Protection Arrangement, which covers governor’s liability
insurance of up to £5,000,000 for each and every loss and in the annual aggregate per academy.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The academy’s governors are directors of the charitable company for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006
and trustees for the purposes of charity legislation. Governors, with the exception of the Founding Governors and
the Chair of Governors who are the four members of the academy, are appointed for a period of four years and
may be re-elected.

The Governing Body structure at Gold ington Academy is as follows:

Founding Governors 4
Parent Governors 3
Appointed Governors 2
Staff Governors 2 (1 teaching, I support)
Principal/Head Teacher 1
Co-opted Governor 1
Total 13

In addition, the Governing Body may decide to appoint up to three co-opted governors.

Foundinc Governors
The Founding Governors are the three members of the academy who signed the memorandum of association
and the Chair of Governors.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Parent Governors
Parent Governors must be parents of a pupil at the academy at the time of being elected. They are elected by
parents of pupils at the academy.

Appointed Governors
These governors are appointed by the members of the academy.

Staff Governors
Staff Governors are elected by their colleagues on the school staff.

Principal/Head Teacher
The academy principal is an ex officio governor.

Local Authority Governor
The Local Authority may appoint a Local Authority Governor.

The Secretary of State for Education may appoint additional governors’ should it be considered that the
academy is pertorming poorly and/or the satety ot pupils is threatened.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Governors

All governors are expected to attend appropriate training and induction. Where necessary induction will provide
training on charity and educational, legal and financial matters.

Training sessions governors have attended during the year include:

Governor training sessions for AY2O1 8-19:

• Human Resources (HR) Overview
• The Governors Role in promoting positive mental health, emotional well-being and resilience
• The role of the Safeguarding Governor
• Finance for Academy Governors
• The Cultural Challenge
• Strategies to support traumatised children in school, training for governors and Head Teachers
• Knowing your school - understanding and questioning indicators of school performance
• Dealing with Key Personnel Policies and Procedures
• Ofsted Briefing

Organ isational structure

The structure consists of three levels: the governors, their sub-committees and the school leadership team. The
aim of this structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.

The governors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget and monitoring
these. It leads on major decisions such as academy aims, strategy, capital expenditure and senior staff
appointments.

There are three Governing Body committees: Finance & Personnel; Premises and Health & Safety and Academic
Standards, SEN and Safeguarding and Educational Visits. There is also a Communications Working Group,
which meets half termly.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The senior leaders are the principal, vice-principal, three assistant heads and the business manager. The Senior
Leadership Team is also supported this year by the Extended Leadership Team, which consists of three
Associate Assistant Heads. These managers control the academy at an executive level implementing the policies
laid down by the governors and reporting back to them. As a group the senior leaders are responsible for the
authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, though appointment boards for
senior posts may contain a governor.

Some spending control is devolved to middle managers, governed by agreed spending limits. The middle
managers team includes year heads and subject coordinators. These managers are responsible for the day to
day operation of the academy, in particular organising the teaching staff, facilities and students.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The arrangements for setting pay and remuneration for all school staff are set out in full in the school’s Whole
School Pay Policy, which is reviewed and approved by governors annually. In summary, the Finance & Personnel
Committee take decisions on the pay of key management staff based on recommendations made by the principal
following the annual round of performance management reviews in the first half of the autumn term. The pay and
remuneration of the Principal is dealt with by a separate committee of three governors, who work with an external
advisor to manage the principal’s performance management. This committee makes pay recommendations to
the Personnel Committee during the autumn term. The school continues to adopt the Nationally and Locally
agreed terms and conditions and pay arrangements for school staff, for all personnel.

Trade Union Facility time

The Academy does not have any employees who are trade union officials.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Governors and senior leaders are obliged to declare pecuniary and related party interests annually and these
records are held by the Company Secretary. Governors are also required to declare an interest in items on the
agenda at the start of each governing body and sub-committee meeting. Interests, which are recorded on the
Academy’s web site in the year were:

‘tit.i ILE uiui !Iiit.1 FTI1’ F1711f7i

Motley and Hope Solicitors Solicitors Robin Francis Employee

Goldington Green Academy Education Robin Francis Governor

Scott, White and Hookins LLP 0C382852 Structural and Civil Engineering Consultants Doug Alcock Partner
CBW Partnership Doug Alcock

Hope Church Goldington 1129798 Christian Church Martyn Hallett Trustee and Employee

Janet’s Childminding Service Child Minding Alan Dickinson Sole Trader

Brickhill Primary School Education Joanna Hawkins Parent Governor
School Readers ClO Education Joanna Hawkins Senior Management Team

GSPG (Beds Borough) Joanna Hawkins Member of Team

Kings Oak Primary Education Adebisi Desalu Clerk to Governors
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of Goldington Academy Trust is the operation of Goldington Academy to
provide education for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 10 and 15 years, drawn mostly from the
local community.

The Governing Body is committed to the principle of maintaining the comprehensive character of the academy
and as such there are no specific aptitude requirements for prospective pupils.

Our broad aim is to provide opportunities for self-development and self-fulfillment for the children at Goldington
Academy to realise their full potential.

We seek to foster a desire for learning within each child and to create a happy community which is caring,
supportive and encouraging, and an environment and experiences which are stimulating, varied and challenging.

Our school seeks to help to cquip coch now generotion of children with the knowledge, skills, ideos nd feelings
which are necessary to enable a fulfilling and happy life in our society. We aim to encourage the children’s sense
of self-awareness as a basis for self-respect and their development of personal attitudes, values and beliefs,
together with an awareness and understanding of the world around them and a respect for the cultures and
religious beliefs of others. The children are encouraged to achieve their best, to be confident to attempt new work
and activities, and to be a part of and to contribute to the school as a working community in which there is respect
for, sensitivity to and care for others.

We aim to ensure that all children:

• have access to the whole school curriculum
• continue to receive and to build a thorough foundation in basic skills
• develop understanding, knowledge, skills, concepts and practical and physical activities which will

enhance their experiences in a developing and changing world
• have a high standard of continuity and progression consistent with the National Curriculum Programmes

of Study; and the standards of children’s achievement reflect quality teaching and quality of children’s
experiences and learning which are monitored, reviewed and evaluated

• experience a high standard of specialist guidance commensurate with their individual needs; including
proper support and materials

• have the opportunity to develop interests through extra-curricular activities
• develop their ability to work both independently and with others

Within these aims we seek to knowthe children as individuals, and to establish mutual trust and respect. Through
the school’s facilities and the staffs considerable teaching and pastoral expertise and by offering a broad, varied
and challenging curriculum in a stimulating, caring and encouraging environment, we seek to cater for each child
according to his or her needs.

We also recognise that society is changing rapidly. We aim to ensure therefore that we provide not only
experiences which enable children to grasp the essential elements of today’s world but also those skills and
values which will prepare them for a happy future in a world which is likely to be very different from todays. In
this sense our school stands not only for tradition but also for the future and a desire to receive, promote and
stimulate fresh thoughts and ideas.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Public Benefit

The Academy is a non-profit organisation that currently provides a free education for the benefit of children.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Fundraising activities

The trust does not engage in public fundraising. During 2018/19 the Trust did not engage any external
professional fundraisers.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and performance

In 2018-19 Goldington Academy (GA) continued in its conversion from being a Middle (9-13 years) to a Secondary
(11-16 years) school. This meant that we had children in Years 6 to lOon site.

It was a very successful year and was the final time that the school would be engaged in delivering the Key Stage
2 targets. As can be seen from the data below GA significantly outperformed both Bedford Borough and National
Average.

Key performance indicators

Key Stage 2 Results

SATS Results 2019 —Attainment

In 2019, the percentage of students achieving the national standard was above the national average in all areas
and has increased since 2018.

Percentage of pupils achieving the expected standard at Goldington 2018

Academy 2018 and 2019 GA 2019

100% 90%
84% 84% 87

80% 72% 709’

ifi iiH LI ii
Reading Writing Grammar, Maths Reading, writing &

punctuation & maths
spelling
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Percentage of pupils achieving the expected standard at Goldington Academy
compared to national results

100%
90%

90% 84% 84%
78% 78% 79%

65% 68%
71% 70%

65%

Iii Iii Iii Iii lb
Reading Writing Grammar, Maths Reading, writing &

punctuation & maths

spelling

• GA 2019 • NATIONAL 2019 • BEDFORD BOROUGH 2019

Attainment in reading has increased by 14% over the last three years at Goldington (compared to 1% nationally).
Our writing and GPS results have increased by 6% over the last three years (1% nationally). Maths attainment has
increased by 19% since 2017, compared to 6% nationally. The percentage of students that have achieved the
national standard in reading, writing and maths has increased by 15% (4% nationally).

At Goldington, the percentage of students achieving higher than the expected standard has increased in all areas
when compared to 2018 and is above the national average.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

30%
28% 27% 27%

20% 19% 19%1i1 I I hoi
Maths Reading, writing &

maths

a GA 2019 a NATIONAL 2019 a BEDFORD BOROUGH 2019

Higher than the expected standard 2018 2019

READING 21% 33%

WRITING 10% 29%

GPS 32% 37%

MATHS 20% 31%

Reading, Writing & Maths 6% 19%

Goldington’s results are at least 16% above the Bedford Borough average in all areas for students working at the
expected standard and 9% or more for students working at higher than the expected standard.

Percentage of pupils achieving higher than expected standard at Goldington Academy
compared to national results

36%36%
40%

35% 33%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

Reading Writing Grammar,

punctuation &

spelling
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ALL PUPILS — Expected Standard

GA 2019
vs

Bedford Bedford
GA NATIONAL Borough Borough

2019 2019 2019 2019
Reading 84% 73% 65% 19%
Writing 84% 78% 68% 16%

Grammar, punctuation & spelling 87% 78% 71% 16%
Maths 90% 79% 70% 20%

Read ing, writing & maths 73% 65% 53% 20%

ALL PUPILS - Higher than expected

GA 2019
Bedford vs Bedford

NATIONAL Borough Borough
2019 2019 2019 2019

READING 33% 27% 20% 13%
WRITING 28% 20% 11% 17%

GPS 36% 36% 27% 9%
MATHS 30% 27% 19% 11%

Reading, Writing & Maths 19% 11% 5% 14%

Although, 2019 will be the last year we have students completing their KS2 SATs (following the completion of our
transition to becoming a secondary school) we feel that these results are indicative of the high-quality education
students receive while at Goldington. We are also proud of these results as there was no narrowing of the curriculum
during KS2 so that they could be achieved.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

KS2 - Pupil Premium

2016- 2017- 2013- 2019-

gap gap gap gap

between between between between

Pupil Premium meeting the expected Non Pupil Premium meeting the PP and PP and PP and PP and

standard expected standard NPP NPP NPP NPP

2016 2017 2013 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019

READING 34% 48% 54% 67% 70% 76% 77% 86% -36% -28% -23% -19%

WRITING 59% 58% 52% 33% 36% 84% 82% 84% -27% -26% .30% -1%

GPS 69% 72% 59% 75% 84% 84% 81% 88% -15% -12% -22% -13%

MATHS 41% 50% 43% 83% 74% 75% 77% 90% -33% -25% -29% -7%

RWM 25% 35% 30% 58% 63% 64% 50% 75% -38% -29% -20% -17%

In 2019, the gap between PP and NPP students was reduced in all subject areas. This was achieved through
Ldi9eied iii[I vi [lois, 11911 1.udliiy iii sI wsve iaul y, [dl ys[iJ st11i ly ol PP siud Is, us ol ex[ii dl IiitwiVi iioi

tutors, purchasing revision books, etc.

Our popularity continued in the community and we remained oversubscribed. Due to 90 students joining us in Year
5 in September 2017 we actually did not have an admission entry for September 2018. However, 78 pupils placed
us as first choice for just 60 places in September 2019 and we once again saw our numbers significantly rise at that
point.

The increase in pupils at Goldington Academy has been a consistent feature of the past 7 years at the school. To
illustrate on the 4th of November 2014 the school had 665 pupils. Four years later on the same date this had risen
to 732.

In 2018-19 our popularity of GA has helped to see a significant rise in funding although it should be noted that due
to the lagged nature of the income stream the school has made the age range conversion whilst receiving hundreds
of thousands of pounds less than a secondary school should have received during this period of time and the fact
that the conversion has been made without a drop in the education standards is credit to all involved in the project.

In the summer of 2018 GA was able to spend the CIF funds allocated by the government on enhancing the
safeguarding of the school. A new entrance, improved fencing and re-modelled office were all part of this project.
Separately the school invested in a CCTV system and the addition of cameras has made a big difference to the
security of the site.

In the summer of 2019 work has begun on the £7 million PSBP investment at GA that will lead to a range of
enhanced features for the school that will include all heating, lighting and IT infrastructure.

The school continues to invest heavily in ICT with state of the art interactive panels being essential for all teachers.
The school has also invested heavily in its Careers programme to ensure that we meet the requirements of the new
Gatsby framework. Other new initiatives in 201 8-19 included the introduction of CPOMs software to allow any
member of staff to log any safeguarding concerns.

Attendance figures are higher than National averages and exclusion rates well under half what National
benchmarking tells us we should expect.

The school is in a tremendous position to develop in 201 9-20, the year when the first set of GCSEs will be
delivered to our pupils.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Most of the academy’s income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency in the form of recurrent
grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFAduring the year
ended 31 August2019 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial
activities.

At 31 August 2018 unrestricted income funds amounted to £428,460 (2018: £359,988) with restricted income
funds of £162,816 (2018: £25,665), excluding the pension scheme deficit. The fixed asset fund amounts to
£4,977,890 (2018: £4,421,090) the assets of which are used exclusively for the provision of education.

The academy has obtained a full actuarial valuation of the pension liability under FRS1O2 in respect of its support
staff pension scheme. As at 31 August 2019 the academy’s pension liability under FRS1O2 was £1,044,000 (2018:
£613,000)

At 31 August 2019 total reserves amounted to £4,525,166 (2018: £4,193,752).

Reserves policy

Governors review academy reserve levels periodically during the year, when setting the annual budget and
considering monthly management reports. This enables a balance to be found between the academy’s
philosophy that funds are intended for the pupils of today, with the need to build reserves for future targeted high
level expenditure and having an operational in-year contingency. The review encompasses the level and nature
of income and expenditure streams and the priority level assigned to tasks and expenditure identified in the
academy’s action and strategic plans.

The Governors have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be approximately £324,000,
being one month’s expenditure, of which around £247,000 relates to staff salaries. Free reserves as at 31 August
2019 amount to £428,460 (2018: £359,988 (all unrestricted)).

Investments Policy

Purpose and scope

The purpose of the Investments Policy is to set out the processes by which academy trustees will meet their
duties under the academy’s Articles of Association and Academies Financial Handbook issued by the ESFA to
invest monies surplus to operational requirements in furtherance of the academy’s charitable aims and to ensure
that investment risk is properly and prudently managed.

Definition of duties

The academy’s Articles give trustees the power ‘to expend the funds of the Trust in such manner as they shall
consider most beneficial for the achievement of the Objects and to invest in the name of the Trust such part of
the funds as they may see fit and to direct the sale or transposition of any such investments and to expend the
proceeds of any such sale in furtherance of the Objects.”

The full governing body has responsibility for the Trust’s finances and is responsible for (with advice from the
Finance Committee) approving the Investments Policy to manage, control and track financial exposure, and
ensure value for money; to review the trust’s investments and investment policy on a regular basis.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The School Business Manager is responsible for producing reliable management accounts and budget forecasts
as a basis for decision making. They are responsible for making investment decisions that comply with this Policy
and for providing sufficient management information to the Finance Committee so it can review and monitor
investment performance.

Objectives

The investment objectives are:

• To achieve best financial return available whilst ensuring that security of deposits takes precedence over
revenue maximisation.

• Only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the
academy bank account becoming overdrawn.

• By complying with this policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and skill and
consequently be in the best interests of the academy, commanding broad public support.

Investment strategy

Investment risk will be managed through asset class selection and diversification to ensure that security of
deposits takes precedence over revenue maximisation.

For selection, assets will only be considered with banking institutions which have credit ratings assessed by Fitch
and or Moody to show good credit quality.

To manage the risk of default, deposits should be spread by banking institution and be subject to a maximum
exposure of £500,000 with any PRA authorised institution by the Bank of England (refer to Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA). Whilst this exceeds the protection limit of £85,000 provided by the FCA it is accepted that it is
not always practicable to find a sufficient number of investments of this size that meet the prudent criteria outlined
in this policy.

Spending and liquidity policy

Decisions on how much to invest and how long to invest for, will be based on operational requirements,
demonstrated by cash flow forecasts produced by the School Business Manager. The cash flow forecasts will
take account of the annual budget and spending plans approved by the governing body and updated regularly.

A sufficient balance must be held in the current account so that the academy’s financial commitments can always
be met without the bank account going overdrawn. The size of the balance will be determined by a forecast of
future need and kept under review.

Investments for a fixed term should not normally exceed one year in order to provide flexibility for the following
year’s plans, unless a clear rationale is provided for exceeding one year to the benefit of the academy.

Monitoring and review

The academy has authorised signatories, two of which are required to sign instructions to the deposit taking
institution. The School Business Manager will monitor the cash position and cash flow forecast and report
investments held and the performance of investments against objectives to the Finance Committee at appropriate
intervals, depending on the terms of the investments. For example, if investments are held one year then an
annual report is appropriate.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Finance

The Board and its committees meet regularly to discharge its responsibilities to ensure robust governance and
effective financial management arrangements are in place. Goldington has established a robust control
framework that includes:

• Compliance with the delegated financial authorities and disciplined financial management.
• The scheme of delegation with appropriate segregation of duties.
• A co-ordinated approach to planning and budgeting process.
• Planning and oversight of the capital projects and minor works, including mitigation of risks during term

time.
• Independent verification of financial controls, systems, transactions and risks.
• Goldington manages risks to ensure effective operation and maintains a risk register, including

contingency and business continuity planning.

Pupil numbers

Goldington ensures that budget forecasts, for the current year and beyond, are compiled accurately and are
based on realistic assumptions regarding:

• Pupil numbers — estimates and admission trends that underpin revenue projections will be based upon
census-based information.

• Other pupil-led funding - trends in other variants such as pupil premium and special needs funding are
analysed and factored into the expenditure on staffing.

• Community - the academy has established good relations with the community and its feeder schools, and
markets the opportunities the academy offers effectively to maximise the academy’s capacity.

• PAN - the popularity of the academy has ensured that the admission number has been met as a middle
school and this is expected as the academy evolves into a full 11-16 secondary school.

Outcomes for pupils

Historically, strong exam results have contributed to positive Ofsted judgments, and it is important that the
academy continues to focus on the progress and achievement of its pupils:

The Board will be provided with the progress of pupils in each year group and key stage, with accurate
predictions for GCSE outcomes.
Teaching staff are provided with ongoing professional development to ensure that the teaching matches
the requirements of the examination boards, including good preparation for public examinations, in a
broad, balanced and inclusive curriculum.
All Goldington Academy leaders are ensuring that there is a secure understanding regarding the national
accountability measures at key stages 3 and 4.
The academy will ensure that the progress of vulnerable and disadvantaged pupils and minority groups
will be a high priorityfor all subjects.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Capital building projects

The academy has ensured that any capital works will not interrupt the teaching arrangements across the 190
days when it is open to pupils:

• If required, temporary accommodation will be provided for teaching should there be a need to handover
classroom blocks to contractors.

• The type of temporary accommodation will be determined by the curriculum requirements and the age
range of the pupils affected.

• Pupils undertaking public examinations will receive priority in the event of an enforced closure.
• The academy timetable will be adjusted to take account of pupil and staff movements and journeys

across the site, including their safeguarding in temporary buildings.
• The academy has a business continuity plan that is held off-site to ensure continuity of education

including energy outages and loss of internet connectivity.
• The academy has implemented a risk management system for the management of its facilities, including

control of asbestos, legionella, that will ensure minimum disruption to the pupils’ education.

Recruitment and retention

The Academy has identified the skills, specialist teaching and experience that it needs to provide good quality
teaching, learning and assessment, and has addressed any gaps through recruitment, induction, training and
professional development activities:

• The Academy will evidence for prospective and current teachers CPD opportunities and a workload policy
to show teachers exactly how they can meet their career aspirations with Goldington.

• Ensuring that Goldington has a strong and credible digital presence in the recruitment market making
best use of the internet and social media to reach the teaching community online and establish a
Goldington employer-brand.

• As well as making the most of online resources to attract teaching talent, we aim to bring down some of
the barriers within the application process, so straightforward and compliant recruitment processes lead
to a large pool of talent for the academy.

• Goldington will continue to listen to our workforce regarding workload, conditions, their morale and well
being and take appropriate action to maintain a fresh and vibrant teaching and support staff workforce in
an academy that is committed to their personal and professional wellbeing as a priority.

• Goldington will measure the impact of its well-being programmes on staff attendance and punctuality,
including their wider professional offer such as extra-curricular activities, with a view to unlocking the
potential of its existing and future workforce and using savings on opportunities to further improve
working conditions that help to ensure a good work-life balance.

PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

The key issue for the school at the moment remains making a change from being a middle school to a
successful secondary school. 2019-20 will see the first set of GCSEs completed at the school and it is
key for the school that we achieve a good set of results in this first year. The purchase of the secondary
assessment package Go 4 Schools” is key to our monitoring of the data to ensure this takes place.
2019-20 should see our new Art Block built, critical to our delivery of the arts curriculum.
In both 2018-19 and 2019-20 we will see the large Priority Schools Building Programme work take place.
This will involve the entire school having replacement M & E works completed to ensure it is fit to deliver a
secondary curriculum for the next 20 years.
We will continue to develop our working relationships with other local school and providers.
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GOVERNORS REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

• there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable companys auditors are unaware; and
• that Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustees in order to be aware

of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable companys auditors are aware of that
information.

The Governors Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Governors, as
the company directors, on 12 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs Diane Field
Chair of Trustees
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Goldington Academy Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Goldington Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to
the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors’ Report and in the
Statement of Governors’ Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Governor Moctingo ottondod Out of a pozoiblo

Mr Doug Alcock, Member 2 6
Mr Alan Dickinson, Member 6 6
Mrs Diane Field, Member (Chair of Governors) 2 2
Mr Martyn Hallett, Member 5 6
Mr John Bassett, Parent Governor 3 3
Mrs Emma Butler, Co-Opted Governor 4 6
Mr Robin Francis, Appointed Governor 5 6
Mr Ed Friday, Staff Governor (Support Staff) 5 6
Mr Francis Galbraith, Principal and Accounting 6 6
Officer
Mr Paul Hymers, Appointed Governor 5 6
(Responsible Officer, Vice Chair)
Mr Martyn Latchman, Staff Governor (Teaching 2 6
Staff)
Mrs Azma Ahmad-Pearce, Parent Governor 5 6
Mr Matt Price, Parent Governor 1 6

Academic Standards, SEN, Safeguarding and Educational Trips

The role of this Committee is to consider all matters related to the school’s curriculum, academic performance
and the provision for pupils with special educational needs and disability, and to make appropriate
recommendations to the Governing Body.

Finance & Personnel,

The Personnel Committee has delegated powers from the governing body to:

a) draft and recommend for adoption a pay and conditions policy for the school (which is to be consistent
with statutory requirements, national and local guidance and/or agreements made between the LA, the
governing body, the staff and their unions/professional associations),
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

b) implement this policy in a fair and equal manner in accordance with staff contracts of employment and
employment law and giving due regard to the fact that any decision with a financial implication can only
be made subject to the approval of the governing body following advice from the finance committee,

c) draft and recommend for adoption a strategic staffing plan, to include succession and manpower
planning and possible staff salary adjustments in line with appraisal and INSET developments,

d) establish and regularly review personnel policies and procedures and ensure familiarisation with DFE
guidance, in particular in relation to the following:

Employment Policy; Staff Recruitment, Selection and Induction; Redundancy; Disciplinary Procedures
Conduct and Capability; Disciplinary Rules; Staff Code of Conduct; Bullying and Harassment; Grievance
Procedure; Whole school pay policy; Development of staff and Governors; Performance Management;
Personal Information; Equality and Diversity; Sickness Absence; Special Leave of Absence;
Whistleblowing; Physical intervention.

e) report to the governing body on all staff matters which relate to conditions of service.

f) advise the governing body on all current personnel developments which may affect the school’s pay
policy or budget.

g) determine and monitor the appointments procedure on behalf of the governing body.

h) set and monitor a training strategy each year to ensure that adequate staff training and governor training
is taking place.

i) delegate to the principal all matters relating to the day to day selection, management and supervision
(and dismissal) of the staff employed at theschool.

j) ensure that governors on the personnel committee and other committees which have personnel
responsibilities are aware of and understand those responsibilities.

k) ensure that all staff have an effective induction programme and compliance with the induction
requirements for newly qualified teachers.

I) comply with the appraisal regulations for teachers.

m) ensure compliance with “Safeguarding Children and Safer Recruitment in Education; DfES Circular
January 2007

n) form a salary appeals committee when required

o) a sub group of Governors will be formed for the purposes appraising the principal”

H & S and Premises

To assist the decision making of the governing body, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the
best means of fulfilling the responsibilities on all matters related to the health, safety and wellbeing of pupils, staff
and visitors (including proper planning, monitoring and probity) including the stewardship of the Academy’s
buildings.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Effectiveness of Governance

The success of the Governing Body was endorsed by Ofsted during the short inspection carried out on 21 June
2016. In her post inspection report, HMI Kim Pigram said “Governors, led by a conscientious chair of the
governing body, are determined that the school will provide the best education for each pupil. They bring a range
of expertise to the role and use these skills to challenge and support the senior team over many aspects of the
school’s work. Governors supplement what they know about the school through regular visits. They work
alongside the principal in all strategic decisions and are central to the choices being made about the future of the
school.”

Attendance at the Finance & Personnel Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Ed Friday 3 6
Mr Francis Galbraith 6 6
Mr Martyn Hallett 6 7
Mr Paul Hymers 5 6
Mr Alan Dickinson 6 6

Attendance at the Health & Safety and Premises Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mrs Azma Ahmed-Pearce 5 6
Mr Francis Galbraith 5 6
Mr Martyn Hallett 6 6
Mr John Bassett 3 3
Mr Alan Dickinson 6 6

Attendance at Academic Standard, SEN, Safeguarding and Educational Trips Committee meetings in the year
was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Doug Alcock 3 6
Mrs Diane Field 1 2
Mr Robin Francis 6 6
Mr Francis Galbraith 5 6
Mr Matt Price 5 6
Mr Martyn Latch man 4 6
Miss Emma Butler 5 6
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

Identifying that supply costs continued to be a significant issue for the academy in 2017-18, new
strategies have been adopted in 2018-19 to reduce costs in this area to ensure improved value for
money. Actions included:

- Employing a cover supervisor to provide cover at short notice when staff are absent due to
sickness or other unplanned absences.

- Employing a new administrator to be in charge of cover.
- Reviewing the school’s staff structure to ensure that it will adequately and appropriately support the

school as it becomes a secondary school, within the limitations of the reducing school budget.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Goldington Academy Trust for the year 1
September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy’s
significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

• regular reviews by the finance committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
• clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.
• delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
• identification and management of risks.
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The board of trustees has considered the need fora specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint
an internal auditor. However, the Governors have appointed Mr P Hymers, a Governor, to carry out a programme
of internal checks. The Responsible Officer is supported by the external auditor, who performs additional checks
in line with the agreed programme.

The Responsible Officer’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the academy’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:
• Review of Management Reporting
• Review of Accounting Controls
• Review of Fixed Assets

On a quarterly basis, the reviewer reports to the board of trustees through the finance committee on the operation
of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibilities.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

A Auuui Ui iy orri, U i P is I ui ibWL ru eiuvii iy U e riv s ul the yste f uteiai
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

• the work of the Responsible Officer;
• the work of the external auditors;
• the financial management and governance self-assessment process;
• the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Responsible Officer and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 12 December 2019 and signed on their behalf,
by:

Mrs Diane Field Mr Francis Gaibraith
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Governors (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Governors Report and the financial statements in accordance
with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Governors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019

/

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFAIDfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in otherjurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 12 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs Diane Field
Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Goldington Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees
and ESFA.

Mr Francis Gaibraith
A t——ri rnllnr, flffir’ør

Date: 12 December2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Goldington Academy Trust (the ‘academy’) for the year ended 31
August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2019 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

• the Governors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

• the Governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the academy’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

OTHER IN FORMATION

The Governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees’ Report including the Strategic Report, and the
Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Page 27



GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

• the information given in the Governors’ Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

• the Governors’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors’ Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of Governors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Statement of Governors’ Responsibilities, the Governors (who are also the directors
of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the academy’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors’ Report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Judith Coplowe (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of

Peters Elworthy & Moore

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

Salisbury House
Station Road
Cambridge
CB1 2LA
Date: l Ctc/
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 October 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Goldington Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to Goldington Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Goldington Academy Trust and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Goldington Academy Trust and the ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we haveformed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST’S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND
THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Goldington Academy Trust’s funding agreement
with the secretary oi State foi Eduatiori dated 25 tubi 203, and ilie Aadeiiiie Fiiiaual Haiidbuuk ecLai
from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come to
our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August2019 have not been applied to purposes intended
by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions includes:
• Review of the general control environment and governance arrangements
• Review of the Trust’s activities and minutes of meetings
• Review of the register of interests and related party transactions ensuring compliance with the Financial

Handbook
• For a sample of expenditure testing it has been properly authorised and complies with the approved

procurement rules and policies
• Review of transactions and events to ensure compliance with delegations and freedoms as described in

the Financial Handbook.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Judith Coplowe (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Peters Elworthy & Moore

Chartered Accountants Statutory
Auditors

Salisbury House
Station Road
Cambridge
CB1 2LA

Date: I ‘D-i.ot,- oi
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Goldington Academy Trust

Donations and capital
grants

Charitable activities

Other trading activities

Investments

Other income

TOTAL !NCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds

Charitable activities

TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

3 -

4 -

5 144,523

6 417

7 13,503

158,’i’13

8 89,971

9

89,971

3,599,449

210

797,275 797,275 58,658

3,599,449 3,122,663

144,733 200,357

417 361

13,503

NET INCOME/
(EXPENDITURE)

OTHER
RECOGNISED
(LOSSES)/GAINS:

Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes

68,472 30,151 556,791

(324,000) -

655,414

(324,000)

(38,375)

173,000

NET MOVEMENT IN
FUNDS 68,472 (293,849) 556,791 331,414 134.625

The notes on pages 35 to 61 form part of these financial statements.

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

INCOME FROM:

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018

Note £ £ £ £ £

3,599,659 797,276 4,555,377 3,382,039

- - 89,971 103,446

3,569,508 240,484 3,809,992 3,316,968

3,569,508 240,484 3,899,963 3,420,414

26

RECONCILIATION OF
FUNDS:

Total funds brought
forward

TOTAL FUNDS
CARRIED
FORWARD

359,988 (587,335) 4,421,099 4,193,752 4,059,127

19 428,460 (881,1841 4,977,890 4.525,166 4.193,752
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2019 2018
Note £ £

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by operating activities 21 67,996 203,706

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 22 (9,392) (277,563)

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE YEAR 58,604 (73,857)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 666,696 740,553

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 23 725,300 666,696

The notes on pages 35 to 61 form part of these financial statements
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07557785

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST2019

2019 2018
Note £ £

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets 14 4,959,455 4,380,411

4,959,455 4,380,411

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks 15 - 1,611

Debtors 16 178,043 187,760

Cash at bank and in hand 725,300 666,696

903,343 856,067

ureditors: arnoums ialling due wit.hin une
year 17 (293,632) (429,726)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 609,711 426,341

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5,569,166 4,806,752

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26 (1,044,000) (613,000)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 4,525,166 4,193,752

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted funds:

Restricted fixed asset funds 19 4,977,890 4,421,099

Restricted income funds 19 162,816 25,665

Pension fund 19 (1,044,000) (613,000)

Total restricted funds 19 4,096,706 3,833,764

Unrestricted income funds 19 428,460 359,988

TOTAL FUNDS 4,525,166 4,193,752

The financial statements on pages 32 to 61 were approved by he Governors, and authorised for issue on 12
December 2019 and are signed on their behalf, by: 1

Mrs Diane Field Mr Fancis Gaibraith, Principal
Chair of Governing Body Accounting Officier

The notes on pages 35 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Goldington Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

1.2 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable oblects of the academy at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

1.3 Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academys ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

• Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

The academy is benefiting from the ESFA’s Priority Schools Building Programme. The funding for the
programme is not recognised as a capital grant until there is unconditional entitlement from costs
being incurred, and the development occurring on a site where the academy controls through
ownership the site where a development is occurring. The expenditure is capitalised in assets under
construction until the project is complete.

• Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the academy has provided the goods or services.

1.5 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

• Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Expenditure (CONTINUED)

• Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.6 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

1.7 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.8 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

On conversion, the buildings were valued at depreciated replacement cost. The value of land has not
been capitalised. Depreciated replacement cost represents current insurance rebuild costs less an
impairment provision. The impairment provision has been calculated using condition survey reports
previously commissioned by Bedford Borough Council.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Tangible fixed assets (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 3.33% Straight Line
Furniture and fixtures - 10% Straight Line
Computer equipment - 333% Straight Line
Motor vehicles - 20% Straight Line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
Inccp rrnr,njcpH in thp ftmnt nf Pinnnil Arti’itjc

1.9 Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.12 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.13 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 1 02. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the academy’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.14 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Pensions

The academy operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents
the amounts payable by the academy to the fund in respect of the year.

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(“TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

Buildings valuation - land and buildings held for operation purposes are stated at depreciated replacement
cost as at date of conversion. The valuation is considered annually for impairment.

Depreciation - depreciation is charged annually based on the management’s estimate of economic useful
life of the asset per the accounting policies above.

3. INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2018

£ £ £

Capital Grants 54,956 54,956 58,658
Priority Schools Building Project 742,319 742,319 -

797,275 797,275 58,658

An amount of £23,235 from 2018 has been reclassified to income from other trading activities and is
shown under other income.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

4. FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMYS EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds

2019 2019 2018
£ £ £

DFE/ESFA GRANTS

Revenue grants 3,352,682 3,352,682 2,875,387

3,352,682 3,352,682 2,875,387
OTHER ESFA GRANTS

Pupil Premium 147,501 147,501 160,912

Other ESFA grants 70,710 70,710 43,031

218,211 218,211 203,943
OTHER FUNDING

Other income from local authority 8,275 8,275 24,499

SEN from local authority 20,281 20,281 18,834

3,599,449 3,599,449 3,122,663

In 2018 all income was restricted.

5. INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2018
£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 52,620 - 52,620 63,995

School trips 61,133 - 61,133 75,782

Uniform 875 - 875 1,879

Other income 29,895 - 29,895 55,851

Staff absence insurance claims 210 210 2,850

144,523 210 144,733 200,357

TOTAL 2018 197,507 2,850 200,357
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

6. INVESTMENT INCOME

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds

2019 2019 2018
£ £ £

Investment income 417 417 361

In 2018 all income was unrestricted.

7. OTHER INCOMING RESOURCES

Unrestricted Total
funds funds

2019 2019
£ £

RPA insurance claim 13,503 13,503
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

8. EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure on raising
voluntary income:

Direct costs 4,439 - 85,532 89,971 103,446

Academy’s educational
operations:

Direct costs 2,446,608 240,484 238,231 2,925,323 2,623,598

Allocated support costs 520,546 - 364,123 884,669 693,370

2,971,593 240,484 687,886 3,899,963 3,420,414

TOTAL2O18 2,649,190 210,093 561,131 3,420,414

In 2019, of the total expenditure £89,971 (2018 - £103,446) was attributable to unrestricted funds and

£3,808,777 (2018 -£3,316,968) was attributable to restricted funds.
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

9. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Activities
undertaken Support Total Total

directly costs funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Educational operations 2,925,323 884,669 3,809,992 3,316,968

TOTAL 2018 2,623,598 693,370 3,316,968

Analysis of direct costs

Total Total
funds funds

2019 2018
£ £

Net pension finance costs - Note 26 16,000 18,000
Staff costs 2,446,608 2,214,709
Depreciation 240,484 210,093
Educational supplies 134,890 92,361
Staff development 28,094 33,641
Other direct costs 13,233 12,260
Agency / supply costs 46,014 42,534

2,925,323 2,623,598
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019.

9. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Analysis of support costs

Total Total
funds funds

2019 2018
£ £

Staff costs 520,546 419,821

Student rewards 201 117

Payroll services 7,178 8,032

Telephone and broadband 18,022 18,277

Maintenance of premises and equipment 110,837 43,814

Rtc 12,056 12,782

Insurance 17,485 16,366

Technology 52,572 43,238

Catering 22,097 19,220

Photocopier costs 8,919 14,130

Other support costs 55,700 39,866

Bank charges 89 157

Gas and electricity 42,637 41,660

Governance - Auditors’ non audit fees 10,220 9,210

Governance - Professional services - 750

Governance - Auditor’s remuneration 6,110 5,930

884,669 693,370

During the year ended 31 August 2019, the academy incurred governance costs of £16,330 (15,140).
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE RNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

10. NET INCOME

Net income for the year includes:

2019 2018
£ £

Operating lease rentals - 3,022
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 240,484 210,093
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit 5,930 5,930
- other services 10,220 9,210

11. STAFF COSTS

a. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2019 2018
£ £

Wages and salaries 2,270,385 2,035,366

Social security costs 210,341 194,338
Pension costs 490,867 419,486

2,971,593 2,649,190

Agency staff costs 46,014 42,534

3,017,607 2,691,724

b. STAFF NUMBERS

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

2019 2018
No. No.

Teachers 46 42

Administration and support 53 54
Management 6 4

105 100
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

11. STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

b. STAFF NUMBERS (CONTINUED)

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2019 2018
No. No.

Teachers 35 39

Administration and support 26 20

Management 5 4

66 63

c. HIGHER PAID STAFF

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2019 2018
No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 1

In the band £90,001 -100,000 1 1

d. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees, Senior Leadership Team, as
listed on page 1 and the Extended Senior Leadership. The total amount of employee benefits (including
pension contributions and employers NI) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £597,691 (2018 - £546,688).
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

12. GOVERNORS’ REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Governors’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2019 2018
£ £

Mr Francis Galbraith, Prinicipal and Accounting Remuneration 95,000 - 90000 -

Officer 100,000 95,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000- 10,000 -

15,000 15,000
Mr Ed Friday, staff Governor (Support staff) Remuneration 30,000 - 25,000 -

35,000 30,000
Pension contributions paid 5,000 - 5,000 -

10,000 10,000
Mr Martyn Latchman, Staff Governor Remuneration 45,000 - 40,000 -

(Teaching) 50,000 45,000
Pension contributions paid 5,000 - 5,000 -

10,000 10,000

During the year ended 31 August 2019, no Governor expenses have been incurred (2018 - £NIL).

13. GOVERNORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy has purchased insurance to protect
Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. It is not possible to
quantify the Governors and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme
membership.

Page 49



GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

14. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets
Furniture under

Freehold and Computer Motor constructio
property fixtures equipment vehicles n Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

COST OR
VALUATION

At 1 September 2018 5,018,438 249,836 245,813 20,561 42,004 5,576,652

Additions 27,392 21,806 17,206 - 753,124 819,528

At31 August2019 5,045,830 271,642 263,019 20,561 795,128 6,396,180

DEPflECATON

At 1 September 2018 887,326 122,692 165,662 20,561 - 1,196,241

Charge for the year 177,750 25,172 37,562 - - 240,484

At31 August2019 1,065,076 147,864 203,224 20,561 - 1,436,725

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 August 2019 3,980,754 123,778 59,795 - 795,128 4,959,455

At31 August2018 4,131,112 127,144 80,151 - 42,004 4,380,411

15. STOCKS

2019 2018
£ £

Uniform and stationery - 1,611
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GOLDINGTON ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

16. DEBTORS

2019 2018
£ £

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors 2,722 5,778
Other debtors 30,325 65,526
Prepayments and accrued income 144,996 116,456

178,043 187,760

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2019 2018
£ £

Trade creditors 125,102 298,500
Other taxation and social security 58,771 54,392
Other creditors 738 50
Accruals and deferred income 109,021 76,784

293,632 429,726

18. ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

2019 2018
£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2018 20,813 60,925
Resources deferred during the year 43,909 20,813

Amounts released from previous periods (20,813) (60,925)

DEFERRED INCOME AT 31 AUGUST 2019 43,909 20,813

Deferred income comprises the unspent element of school fund balances of £1,947 (2018: £602), income
received in advance for school trips of £27,168 (2018: £6,570), ring fenced capital funding of £14,794
(2018: £13,641).
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August

2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £

UN
RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Unrestricted
funds 359,988 158,443 (89,971) - - 428,460

RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS

ESFA grantc 1,29 (l4c) - -

LA grants 7,175 26,831 (13,208) - - 20,798

Other restricted
funds 3,200 8,485 (8,485) - - 3,200

Pension reserve (613,000) - (107,000) - (324,000) (1,044,000)

(587,335) 3,599,659 (3,569,508) - (324,000) (881,184)

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

Building
valuation 1,431,772 - (62,171) - - 1,369,601

Df F capital
grants 2,948,778 44,151 (167,508) 27,392 - 2,852,813

Capital
Improvement
grants 37,881 - - (27,392) - 10,489

Other capital
grants from LA 2,668 10,805 (10,805) - - 2,668

Priority Schools
Building
Programme - 742,319 - - 742,319

4,421,099 797,275 (240,484) - 4,977,890

TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS 3,833,764 4,396,934 (3,809,992) - (324,000) 4,096,706
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August

2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £

TOTAL FUNDS 4,193,752 4,555,377 (3,899,963) - (324,000) 4,525,166

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

i) Unrestricted Funds — represent funds available to the Governors to apply for the general purposes
of the Academy.

ii) Other restricted funds - to be used for specific running costs of the Academy.

iii) LA Grants - to be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

iv) General Annual Grant (ESFA) — to be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

v) Restricted Fixed Asset Funds — this comprises fixed assets funded by government grants.

vi) Priority Schools Building Programme - relates to assets being constructed under the ESFA Priority
Schools Building Programme

vii) Prior year only - Transfer from restricted ESFA grants or unrestricted funds to restricted ESFA capital
grants relates to the shortful of funding for capital expenditure.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains! 31 August

2017 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £

UN
RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Unrestricted
funds 265,566 197,868 (103,446) - - 359,988

RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS

Other restricted
funds - 6,050 (2,850) - - 3,200

LA grants - 40,133 (32,958) - - 7,175

ESFA grants - 3,079,330 (2,974,067) (89,973) - 15,290

Pension reserve (689,000) - (97,000) - 173,000 (613,000)

(689,000) 3,125,513 (3,106,875) (89,973) 173,000 (587,335)

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

Building
valuation 1,493,943 - (62,171) - - 1,431,772

DfE capital
grants 2,758,220 13,987 (147,922) 324,493 - 2,948,778

Capital
Improvement
Grants 230,398 - - (192,517) - 37,881

Other Capital
Grants from LA - 44,671 - (42,003) - 2,668

4,482,561 58,658 (210,093) 89,973 - 4,421,099

TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS 3,793,561 3,184,171 (3,316,968) - 173,000 3,833,764
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains! 31 August

2017 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £

TOTAL FUNDS 4,059,127 3,382,039 (3,420,414) - 173,000 4,193,752

20. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - CURRENT YEAR

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 4,959,455 4,959,455
Current assets 457,575 385,147 60,621 903,343
Creditors due within one year (29,115) (222,331) (42,186) (293,632)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1,044,000) - (1,044,000)

TOTAL 428,460 (881,184) 4,977,890 4,525,166

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets
- - 4,380,411 4,380,411

Currentassets 367,161 407,413 81,493 856,067
Creditors due within one year (7,173) (381,748) (40,805) (429,726)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (613,000) - (613,000)

TOTAL 359,988 (587,335) 4,421,099 4,193,752
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RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
21. ACTIVITIES

2019 2018
£ £

Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of Financial
Activities) 655,414 (38,375)

ADJUSTMENTS FOR:

Depreciation 240,484 210,093

Capital grants from Df F and other capital income (797,275) (58,658)

Interest receivable (417) (361)

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 91,000 79,000

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 16,000 18,000

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 1,611 (28)

Increase in debtors (2,499) (50,577)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (136,322) 44,612

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 67,996 203,706

22. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2019 2018
£ £

Interest 417 361

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (76,981) (318,511)

Capital grants from Df F Group 67,172 40,587

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (9,392) (277,563)

23. ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018
£ £

Cash in hand 725,300 666,696

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 725,300 666,696
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24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education and Skills the same proportion of the
proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of
State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy
serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

(a) the value at that time of the Academy’s site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Academy; and

(b) the extent to which expenditure incurrec in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.

25. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2019 2018
£ £

CONTRACTED FOR BUT NOT PROVIDED IN THESE FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets - 36,485

26. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by EPM. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

TEACH ERS PENSION SCHEME

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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26. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS’ PENSION SCHEME

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the
valuation and subsequent consultation are:

• employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer

administration charge)

• total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions

toqether with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a

notional past service deficit of £14,900 million

• an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

• the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate

of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September
2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the
employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 September 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £278,117 (2018 -£250,845).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £154,000 (2018-
£115,000), of which employer’s contributions totalled £121,000 (2018 - £90,000) and employees’
contributions totalled £ 33,000 (2018 - £25,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20 per
cent for employers and 5.5 -12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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26. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2019 2018
% %

Rate of increase in salaries 2.5 2.7
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.3 2.4
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.9 2.8

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2019 2018
Years Years

Retiring today

Males 20.7 22.4
Females 23.2 22.5
Retiring in 20 years

Males 21.1 24.0
Females 24.7 26.2

Sensitivity analysis

2019 2018
£000 £000

Discount rate +0.1% (2018:+0.5%) 225 242
Discount rate -0.1% (2018: -0.5%) 235 50
Pension rate +0.1% (2018: +0.5%) 235 188

The academy’s share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 At 31 August
August2019 2018

£ £

Equities 1,275,000 777,800
Corporate bonds 286,000 187,700
Property 173,000 120,700
Cash and other liquid assets 86,000 254,800

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS 1,820,000 1,341,000
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26. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The actual return on scheme assets was £13,000 (2018 -£13,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2019 2018
£ £

Current service cost (212,000) (169,000)

Past service cost 121,000 90,000

Interest income 43,000 31,000

Interest cost (59,000) (49,000)

TOTAL AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES (107,000) (97,000)

Changcz in the precent value of the defined benefit obligationo were ac follown

2019 2018
£ £

AT 1 SEPTEMBER 1,954,000 1,869,000

Past Service Costs 13,000 -

Current service cost 199,000 169,000

Interest cost 59,000 49,000

Employee contributions 33,000 25,000

Acturial losses/(gains) 323,000 (141,000)

Benefits paid 283,000 (17,000)

AT 31 AUGUST 2,864,000 1,954,000

Changes in the fair value of the academy’s share of scheme assets were as follows:

2019 2018
£ £

AT1 SEPTEMBER 1,341,000 1,180,000

Expected return on assets 44,000 31,000

Acturial (Iosses)!gains (1,000) 32,000

Employer contributions 121,000 90,000

Employee contributions 33,000 25,000

Benefits paid 283,000 (17,000)

Administration expenses (1,000) -

AT31 AUGUST 1,820,000 1,341,000
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27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2019 the academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

academy academy
2019 2018

£ £

Not later than 1 year 4,941 2,518
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 8,830 -

13,771 2,518

28. MEMBERS LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy’s operations and the composition of the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations
in which a trustees has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s
length and in accordance with the academy’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

During the year Hope Church, of which a trustee is a founding Governor of the Academy, hired out the
main hall and facilities at the Academy for £7,799 (2018: £10,059). Bookings were made through the site
agent and hiring costs were at a normal commercial basis. At the year end, a balance was owed from
Hope Church amounting to £nil (2018: £910).
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